10-300 (Rev. 10-74) UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR SHEET PHO24 6832

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

AECEIVED JUL 2 8 1975

NVENTORY NOMINATION	N FORM	DATE ENTER	ED)	EC (\$775
SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN <i>HOV</i>	V TO COMPLETE NA COMPLETE APPLI			3
NAME	COMPLETEATIE	CABLE OF	3110110	
HISTORIC				
Myrick's Mill AND/OR COMMON				<u></u>
I O O A MILONI	<u> </u>			
LOCATION STREET & NUMBER OF F THE	tuck			
STREET & NUMBER NE of Fitylos County Road 378		NC	OT FOR PUBLICATION	
CITY, TOWN			ONGRESSIONAL DISTR - Williamson	
STATE	X VICINITY OF CODE		DUNTY	CODE
Georgia	13	Twi	ggs	289
CLASSIFICATION				
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP	STATUS	•	PRES	ENT USE
DISTRICTPUBLIC	_OCCUPIED		AGRICULTURE	MUSEUM
XBUILDING(S) X PRIVATE	X_UNOCCUPIED		COMMERCIAL	PARK
STRUCTUREBOTH	WORK IN PROGRES	S	EDUCATIONAL	PRIVATE RESIDE
SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITIO	N ACCESSIBLE		ENTERTAINMENT	RELIGIOUS
OBJECTIN PROCESS	X_YES: RESTRICTED		GOVERNMENT	SCIENTIFIC
BEING CONSIDERED	YES: UNRESTRICTED)	INDUSTRIAL	TRANSPORTATIO
	NO		MILITARY	X OTHER:
OWNER OF PROPERTY				
NAME				·
W. C. Humphries, Jr.	,			
STREET & NUMBER				
County Road 378			STATE	
Fitzpatrick _	v VICINITY OF		Georgia	
LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC	CRIPTION			•
COURTHOUSE.		•		•
REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC. Twiggs County	Courthouse		• •	
STREET & NUMBER	Courthouse			
CITY, TOWN			STATE	
Jeffersonvill	e		Georgia	
REPRESENTATION IN EXIS		'S	•	
TITLE				
DATE				
	FEDERA	L _STATE .	_COUNTY _LOCAL	
DEPOSITORY FOR				
SURVEY RECORDS				
CITY, TOWN			STATE	



__EXCELLENT

__G00D

XFAIR

CONDITION

__DETERIORATED
__RUINS

CHECK ONE

X_UNALTERED __ALTERED

CHECK ONE

X ORIGINAL SITE
__MOVED DATE_____

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Myrick's Mill has been a significant part of a plantation unit since sometime before the Civil War. The name derived from General Stith Parham Myrick whose 3200-acre Twiggs County plantation was known as Myrick's Mill Plantation. The mill is a 2-1/2-story raised weatherboarded structure situated along Big Sandy Creek in northeastern Twiggs County.

The mill is of a simple square design with 4 bays on each of the unpainted weather-boarded facades. Hand-planed pine shutters cover two of the windows. The roof is of wooden shingles overlaid at a later date with tin. A one-story addition (apparently of the same date as the remainder of the mill) is located on the southeast and was the main entrance to the mill. This one-story entrance room has a tiled roof. Both the main 2-1/2 story structure and the one story southeast projection are hip-roofed.

The mill originally rested on raised stilts. The stilts remain, however, but they have since been implanted in concrete. The original yellow pine beams which run the width of the building remain in place, being over 30 feet long. Although there are square and later round nails in the mill, much of the original mill structure was notched and pegged into place. A seven-foot high unpainted wood door opens from the southeast entrance room. The early iron hinges and a wooden bolt are still present. A square plain unglazed window is to either side of this entrance door. The original wood shutters remain in one of these two windows. The entrance room of the mill measures approximately 34 x 25 feet and the mill as a whole measures roughly 34 x 60 feet.

There are four distinct rooms within the mill. The first, the southeast entrance room has the early pine flooring and several pieces of mill furniture, troughs, etc. A door opens from this into the larger mill room on the first floor. A raised platform is located in this room along with portions of mill machinery chairs, etc. A straight staircase, apparently not original, leads from this room to the large pine-floored room encompassing all of the second floor. The staircase opens on the second floor landing to a wooden gate with hinges from which entrance is gained to the room. A similar room on the third floor is reached by a staircase. Here, the ceiling is lower, slanting sharply down on the northern and western sides.

The ceilings within the mill are approximately 15 feet high. On the interior of the structure beams are exposed. The present condition of the mill is generally fair. The yellow pine flooring remains sturdy, concrete has bolstered the foundations, but the roof is leaning and has been perforated with holes. A concrete sided mill race channels water into the area where once the millwheel stood.

8. SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

__PREHISTORIC __ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION __1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW ... SCIENCE __LITERATURE __1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __SCULPTURE __EDUCATION __1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE __MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN

__1700-1799 __Añī ___ENGINEERING _MUSIC __THEATER

X1800-1899 __COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION __1900-__COMMUNICATIONS X_INDUSTRY

__INVENTION

SPECIFIC DATES

c.1840

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

__POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

__OTHER (SPECIFY)

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Myrick's Mill in Twiggs County, Georgia, is of historical significance to the State as one of the few remaining antebellum mills in largely an unaltered condition; and as a social hub of a large cotton plantation and later of the rural community. It was one of only three mills in this district of Twiggs county in 1840 and served the farmers of the neighboring counties of Jones and Wilkinson as well. The mill is a living reminder of the earliest "manufacturing" edifice in a county that was not to shed its rural outlook for another century, and was a means for turning much farm produce to marketable or edible usage.

Myrick's Mill was built sometime c.1840 on or about Land Lot 74 in the 27th District of Twiggs County. Land Lot 74 was drawn by James McCartney of Johnson's Battalion in Jackson County on July 5, 1808. At the time of the initial survey in 1806 this tract of land was a virtual swamp.

In the 1836 Tax Digest of Twiggs County, Stith Parham Myrick is shown as owning 3535 acres in the 27th District, including the site of the mill. Myrick, a wealthy planter who also owned land in Baldwin County, had 76 slaves and the aggregate value of his Twiggs property amounted to \$120,148. The date when Myrick acquired this property is unknown, as is the question of whether Myrick had the mill built or used a mill already on the site. Popular legend had it that this mill on Big Sandy Creek was visited by the Marquis de Lafayette in the spring of 1825. (It is said that he later sent the miller a bolt of silk from France to improve the quality of his meal.) However, on his trip through Georgia, Lafayette passed directly from Milledgeville to Clinton to Macon, never entering Twiggs The legend indicates that the mill had been established this early but there is no firm substantiation of this. From various construction techniques used and a genealogical account of the Myrick family, it would be safe to assume that the mill was in use by at least 1840. As all Twiggs county records prior to 1901 were destroyed by fire, no firmer date can be established.

S. P. Myrick was born March 7, 1815. He married Elizabeth Peeple in 1834 and Elizabeth Dowdell in 1844. Myrick's father had married Martha Parham, twin sister of Sarah Parham who was the mother of noted Georgian Benjamin H. Hill. Myrick lived early on his Oconee River plantation and in 1835 he became executor of the estate of his grandfather. On August 26, 1844, Governor Crawford appointed Myrick a Brigadier General in the Georgia militia. During the Civil War, Myrick raised and personally equipped the "Myrick Volunteers." His son James D. Myrick made his first home at Myrick's Mill and at least one of his children was born here.

The war hit the Myrick estate with devastation. On January 17, 1874, assignees for Myrick pleaded bankruptcy, deeding the 3,200 acre tract known as Myrick's Mill Plantation to Samuel A. Jewell. On January 17, 1878, Daniel and Mary Jewell sold this same tract to Woodward, Baldwin and Company of New York for \$1,200. Shelton Napier later purchased the

9 MAJOR BIBLIOGR	APHICAL REFER	RENCES		
Bowden, Allie Godwin Myrr Department of Archives an Statistics, Tax Digest	nd History, State of		Records, Manufact	uring
Faulk, L.J. O., and Billy Jeffersonville, Georgia	y Jones; <u>History of</u> a, 1959.		eorgia¼ 1809-1959	DHR.
Twiggs County Records: De	eed Records, Plat Re	cords.		
10 GEOGRAPHICAL	DATA	UTM OK -		
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPE				
UTM REFERENCES				
ZONE EASTING	3.6 3.0 1.5.0 NORTHING	ZONE EASTING	5, 5, 0 3, 6 2, 9 1 NORTHING	
C 117 2 717 91010 VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRI		Pl117 2 717	91010 316 310 1	<u> 15101</u>
VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION	RIPTION			
Northern boundary:	northern edge of mil			
Southern boundary: (•	
•	where bridge crosses western edge of mill	-	•	
western soundary.	vebtern onge er man			•
LIST ALL STATES AND	COUNTIES FOR PROPERTI	ES OVERLAPPING STATE	OR COUNTY BOUNDAR	IES
STATE	CODE	COUNTY	c	ODE
STATE	CODE	COUNTY	<u>,</u> c	ODE
11 FORM PREPARED	ВҮ			
	Invale, Historic Ana	alysis Unit Manage		
ORGANIZATION			May 12, 1975	•
STREET & NUMBER	servation Section		TELEPHONE	
270 Washingto	on Street, S.W.	404	-656-2840	. •
CITY OR TOWN -		-	STATE	and the second s
Atlanta		G	eorgia	
TO STATE HISTORIC				•
•	PRESERVATION			•
THE EVAL	UATED SIGNIFICANCE OF T	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN		
THE EVAL	UATED SIGNIFICANCE OF T	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN	THE STATE IS:	.90 CCE) I
THE EVAL	UATED SIGNIFICANCE OF T STATE Preservation Officer for the Na r inclusion in the National Re	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law	
THE EVAL NATIONAL As the designated State Historic P hereby nominate this property for	Preservation Officer for the National Revy the National Park Service.	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN The string of the string	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law been evaluated accor	
As the designated State Historic Phereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth b	Preservation Officer for the National Report the National Park Service. FICER SIGNATURE DAVID M	tional Historic Preservations and certify that it has safety that safety that it has safety that safety	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law been evaluated accor	
As the designated State Historic Phereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth b	Preservation Officer for the National Report the National Park Service.	tional Historic Preservations and certify that it has safety that safety that it has safety that safety	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law been evaluated according to the control of the	
THE EVAL NATIONAL As the designated State Historic P hereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth b STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OF	Preservation Officer for the National Revy the National Park Service. FICER SIGNATURE DAVID M PRESERVATION OFFICE	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN tional Historic Preservations agister and certify that it has shown as the same of	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law as been evaluated according to the control of	
THE EVAL NATIONAL As the designated State Historic P hereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth by STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OF TITLE STATE HISTORIC FOR NPS USE ONLY	Preservation Officer for the National Revy the National Park Service. FICER SIGNATURE DAVID M PRESERVATION OFFICE	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN tional Historic Preservations agister and certify that it has shown as the same of	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law as been evaluated according to the content of	
As the designated State Historic Phereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth by STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OF TITLE STATE HISTORIC FOR NPS USE ONLY I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT HIS	Preservation Officer for the National Report of the National Park Service. PRESERVATION OFFICE OF PROPERTY SINCHUDED IN	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN The string of the string	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law as been evaluated according to the control of	
As the designated State Historic Phereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth by STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OF TITLE STATE HISTORIC FOR NPS USE ONLY I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT HIS	Preservation Officer for the National Revy the National Park Service. FICER SIGNATURE DAVID M PRESERVATION OFFICE	HIS PROPERTY WITHIN The string of the string	THE STATE IS: LOCAL X n Act of 1966 (Public Law as been evaluated according to the content of	

GPO 888-445

Form No. 10-300a (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY
RECEIVED JUL 2 8 1975

DATE ENTERED DEC 8 1975

CONTINUATION SHEET Significance ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 2

land from the New York Company and sold the land to C. C. Humphries for \$30,000. The land has remained in the Humphries family since that time. Until Humphries sold approximately 200 acres to various parties, Myrick's Mill Plantation had been handed down intact as a 3,200 acre unit from General Myrick through the Humphries. The Humphries own 2950 acres of the original tract and W. C. Humphries, Jr., Lassie H. Gates and Hazel H. Farrow each have a 1/3 ownership of the land.

The Bureau of Census Manufacturing Statistics for 1880 reveal that James Myrick operated Myrick's Mill on Big Sandy Creek. He had invested \$1,000 capital in the saw mill here, the mill also served as a flour and grist mill. Five laborers were employed in the saw mill working 12 hours a day from May to November and 10 hours a day from November to May. The ordinary saw mill laborer at Myrick's Mill was paid 60¢ a day, the skilled mechanic drawing \$1.50. The saw mill was in operation only six months of the year. A single mule saw was used at the mill the annual value of the logs was \$550, the value of mill supplied \$150. The total value of all mill products was \$1250 and 125,000 feet of lumber were produced annually. Myrick used logs from his plantation here and the mill was a water powered turbine operation. The height of Big Sandy's falls were six feet and the mill wheels were four feet in breadth, making 150 r.p.m. and generating a force of 20 h.p.

A flour and grist mill was also operated at Myrick's Mill. Myrick, in 1880, invested \$3,000 in capital in the mill and had two hands working full-time at the mill, 12 hours a day from May to November, and 10 a day from November to May. Again, the pay for a skilled mechanic was \$1.50 a day and 60¢ for unskilled laborers. Myrick paid out \$285 in wages for the year with the grist mill in full-time operation six months a year and halftime the remainder of the year. The mill operated on three stones and had a maximum capability of grinding 180 bushels per day. The mill did custom work only and was without an elevator. The height of the fall was listed as seven feet, the 4-foot-wide turbine wheel grinding the mill at 200 r.p.m. with a force of 30 h.p. During the year 1878-80, Myrick's Mill ground 1537 bushels of wheat, 8056 bushels of other grains. The mill turned out 306 barrels of wheat flour and 435,136 pounds of corn meal. The total value of all mill materials was \$8,280 and the total value of all products was \$10,000.

The mill was in operation until the 1950's and was often times used as a community center where dances and other functions were held. With the rise of the Kaolin industry elsewhere in Twiggs and neighboring counties, this corner in the northeast portion of the county rapidly lost population. The mill was soon abandoned although it enjoyed occasional use during the 1960's. In a fair, largely unaltered condition, Myrick's Mill is one of the few remaining mills in Georgia dating from antebellum times.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

FOR NPS USE ONLY		
The second of th		
RECEIVED		
Security and the first	مو	1975
DATE ENTERED	OFU.	,

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET Significance

ITEM NUMBER 8

PAGE 2

AMENDMENT TO MYRICK'S MILL

TWIGGS COUNTY

Included in the 185-acre National Register tract at Myrick's Mill are the W. C. Humphreys Grocery and Market and an old wooden bridge across Big Sandy Creek.

The store, built c.1930, is located approximately 20 yards southeast of the mill and facing it. Iron gates are in the windows, the roof is shingled and a double screen door opens into the store. In front of the store is an old orange gasoline tank with a small c.1930 gasoline pump beside it. The store was operated in conjunction with the mill, the Humphreys selling groceries and supplies to farmers bringing corn or timber to the mill.

Located east of Myrick's Mill across Big Sandy is an old wooden plank bridge constructed around the turn of the century. The bridge, with iron trestle side railings, is only about twelve feet wide, and is in a very poor condition with some of the planks missing and all the wood damp and mouldy and rapidly deteriorating.

The county highway running by Myrick's Mill is currently being widened and a new bridge has been constructed approximately 20 yards from the old bridge and nearer to the mill. The highway is passing very close to the mill and at present the grounds fronting the mill are being used to dump gravel and dirt and to park the road equipment.

All of this area, east to the bridge and including the whole extent of the millpond and raceway, is included in the National Register nomination.

Morton McInvale Historic Preservation Section Department of Natural Resources 270 Washington Street, S. W., Room 703-C Atlanta, Georgia 30334

October 28, 1975

David M. Sherman

State Historic Preservation Officer



X Humphries Home

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES PROPERTY MAP FORM

FOR	NPS	USE	ONLY				
		- 70					
REC	EIVE)					
					46	167	
				DEC	9		
DAT	EEN	TEREC					

CELIN	STRUCTIONS IN	I HOW TO	COMPLETE	ΝΔΤΙΟΝΔΙ	REGISTER	FORMS
OFF IIA	SINGCHONSII	1 // 0 // / 0	COMIT EL IL	MAHOMAL	/IL 0/0/L/I	, 0,,,,,,
	TV05 41				_	
	ΙΥΡΕΔΙ	I FNIBIF	S FNCLOS	$\mathbf{L} \mathbf{M} \mathbf{M} \mathbf{H} \mathbf{M} \mathbf{M} \mathbf{A}$	P	

1 NAME

HISTORIC

Myrick's Mill

AND/OR COMMON

2 LOCATION

CITY, TOWN

Fitzpatrick

X_VICINITY OF

COUNTY

Georgia

STATE

3 MAP REFERENCE

SOURCE Morton McInvale

SCALE

Not to Scale

DATE

June, 1975

Twiggs

4 REQUIREMENTS

TO BE INCLUDED ON ALL MAPS

- 1. PROPERTY BOUNDARIES
- 2. NORTH ARROW
- 3. UTM REFERENCES

INT: 3464-75